
Parks & Arts 
Commission 

VIRTUAL 
September 3, 2020 

7:00 PM 

To help prevent the spread of COVID-19, all Parks and Arts Commissioners will be participating 
in the meeting remotely. Currently, following the guidance and emergency proclamation of the 
Governor, we are prohibiting the public from attending in person. To ensure our meetings are 
accessible to the public and provide for public participation, the live feed of the Parks and Arts 
Commission meeting will be available via a Zoom link to call in and/or participate. 

City of Mukilteo is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom meeting. 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85340089508?pwd=eU9mNDY1WGg5MWNweFd4MUdNUHlrZz09 

By Phone: +1 (253) 215-8782 Meeting ID: 853 4008 9508 Password: 641177 

CALL TO ORDER – 7:00 PM 

ROLL CALL 

AGENDA ORDER 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
Approval of Minutes of August 6, 2020 

PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA 
Members of the audience may address the Parks and Arts Commission for a maximum of three (3) minutes. 

QUARTERLY CITY COUNCIL LIAISON UPDATE 

NEW BUSINESS ITEMS: 
1. 2020 Comprehensive Plan Final Docket List – PAC Related Items
2. Waterfront Update

OLD BUSINESS ITEMS: 
1. Byers Family Park Project Update

REPORTS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
1. Chairperson and Commissioner Announcements

a. Committee Reports
2. Staff Announcements/Information

ADJOURNMENT 

Due to COVID-19, printed packets are not available at City Hall. Complete packets can be mailed upon request. Written public 
comment may be submitted via email (permittech@mukilteowa.gov). 

For accessibility information and accommodation requests, please call the ADA Coordinator at (425) 263-8005 (or TRS (800) 833-
6384 or dial 711), or visit https://mukilteowa.gov/departments/executive/ada-program/. Please contact us at least two (2) business 

days in advance of the meeting so that we can arrange a reasonable accommodation for you. 

Page 1 of 36

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85340089508?pwd=eU9mNDY1WGg5MWNweFd4MUdNUHlrZz09
mailto:permittech@mukilteowa.gov
https://mukilteowa.gov/departments/executive/ada-program/


APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

August 6, 2020 

Page 2 of 36



CITY OF MUKILTEO, WASHINGTON 
Parks and Arts Commission Minutes  

August 6, 2020 
7:00 pm 

Virtual Zoom Meeting 

CALL TO ORDER 
Acting Chairperson Montgomery called the meeting to order at 7:04 PM. 

ROLL CALL 
Commissioners: 
Acting Chairperson Montgomery, Commissioners Carlson, Foster, Hammerman, and Zaman (late arrival) were 
present. 
Chairperson Specht, Commissioner Bowers Absent (excused). 

City Staff: 
Recreation and Cultural Services Director Price and Permit Services Assistant Martinis were present. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
Motion:  To approve the minutes of July 9, 2020 
Motion By:  Commissioner Carlson 
Seconded By: Commissioner Hammerman 
Action:  PASS 5-0  
Vote: Ayes: Acting Chairperson Montgomery, Commissioners Carlson, Foster,  Hammerman, and 

Zaman 
Nays: None 

PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA 
September 3, 2020 Quarterly City Council update by Council member Crawford. 

NEW BUSINESS ITEMS 
None 

OLD BUSINESS ITEMS 

1. Byers Family Park Project Update

Director Price noted that the contractor RJ Company experienced a seven (7) to eight (8) day delay in the Byers 
Family Park project due to obtaining materials for the rock wall, but they are still on target to complete the job at 
the end of August or early September 2020.  The Grand Opening of the Byers Family Park will be in the Fall of 
2020 or the Spring of 2021. 

The City Council has approved the naming of Byers Family Park, and Director Price passed along the Council’s 
appreciation for the Commissioners involvement in making this project a reality. 

Commissioners asked questions and Director Price addressed. 

2. Per Capita Draft Guidelines Development

In 2019, City Council adopted Per Capita funding for both Physical and Performing Arts for 2020.  Director Price 
reviewed a couple local jurisdictions examples of draft guidelines to develop for the 2021 budget.  This will be a 
plan the Commissioners will build together. 

       The Commissioners asked questions and gave constructive input to Director Price for follow up for the September 
        Commission meeting. 

Page 3 of 36



REPORTS AND COMMUNICATION 

Director Price reported the Dirt Bike Jump Course project would be on the Agenda for September 3, 2020 meeting.  

Director Price discussed the Cares Grant Program that he will be administering this year. 

Director Price shared the staff layoffs at Rosehill due to Covid-19 and the difficulty in that.  

Commissioner Carlson reported that the Docketing Application she submitted for the rezoning near Japanese Gulch 
to build a senior center received approval to move forward (final list) by the City Council.  She thanked Director Price 
and the City Planners for all their assistance. 

Commissioner Foster asked to have added to a future Agenda the discussion of a parkour in Old Town. 

Commissioner Hammerman reported the Chamber is hosting an Amazing Race on August 22, 2020. 

Next Meeting: September 3, 2020 at 7:00 PM. 

ADJOURNMENT 

Motion:  To adjourn the meeting at 7:50 PM 
Motion By:  Commissioner Zaman 
Seconded By: Commissioner Hammerman 
Action:  PASS 5 -0 
Vote:  Ayes: Acting Chairperson Montgomery, Commissioners Carlson, Foster, and Hammerman, 

Zaman 
Nays: None 

These minutes are excerpts from the Parks and Arts Commission meeting.  An audio recording of the meeting was 
made. 
Prepared by:   DRAFT 
_____________________________ 
Cheryl Martinis, Permit Services Assistant 

Page 4 of 36

http://mukilteo-wa.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=17&meta_id=910


MUKILTEO PARKS AND ARTS COMMISSION FYI 

SUBJECT TITLE:  2020 Comprehensive Plan 
Final Docket List – PAC Related Items 

FOR AGENDA OF:   
September 3, 2020 

Department Director: 
David Osaki, Community Development 
Director 

EXHIBITS: 

1. Map - City of Mukilteo Japanese Gulch 76th
Street Trailhead (4407 76th Street)

2. 2016 Japanese Gulch Master Plan - Excerpts
3. Map - City of Mukilteo Property (former

Cannon Family Property)

Contact Staff: 
Linda Ritter, Senior Planner 

SUMMARY 
The City conducts an annual call to the public for docket applications to propose amendments 
to the Comprehensive Plan, zoning code text or zoning map (rezones).  All amendment requests 
are presented to the City Council at a public hearing as part of a Preliminary Docket and Final 
Docket.  

On August 3, 2020, City Council approved the Final Docket list. The following items on the Final 
Docket list potentially involve code amendments that will need to be added to the Parks and 
Arts Commission (PAC) workplan for review and recommendations. 

1. City owned Property- 4407 76th Street - Japanese Gulch 76th Street Trailhead

(See Exhibit 1 and Exhibit 2)

Comprehensive Plan Map Amendment from “Parks and Open Space” to “Commercial”
with a concurrent rezone from “Open Space” to “Public/Semi-Public.”  Amendments to
the Japanese Gulch Master Plan are also proposed.

2. City owned Property - former Cannon Property (Tax Parcel 00567000001202)

(See Exhibit 3)

Comprehensive Plan Map Amendment from “Single Family Residential High Density” to
“Parks and Open Space” with a concurrent rezone from “RD 7.5” to “Open Space.”
Amendments to the Japanese Gulch Master Plan are also proposed.
This parcel abutted the Japanese Creek Gulch Park when acquired from the Cannon
Family in 2019.

BACKGROUND: 
The City of Mukilteo annually accepts applications from the public to amend the City of 
Mukilteo Comprehensive Plan and development regulations. This year that process was opened 

Page 5 of 36



December 31, 2019 and closed February 11, 2020.  The COVID-19 pandemic has led to the 
postponement of the City Council docket public hearing until this time. 

The City of Mukilteo docket process provides the opportunity for interested parties and 
property owners to propose amendments directly to the City Council. The initial list of requests 
is commonly referred to as the “Preliminary Docket.” 

Preliminary Docket applications that warrant further evaluation are placed on the “Final 
Docket” list by City Council motion. 

Now that the Final Docket is set, staff will begin analysis of each item and will process each 
through the standard amendment process. This includes opportunities for public comment, 
environmental review, PAC review and recommendation, a Planning Commission public hearing 
and recommendation, and finally City Council action.  

RECOMMENDATION 
For information only. 

Page 6 of 36



City of Mukilteo 

Land Use Permit Application 

GENERAL INFORMATION 

11930 Cyrus Way 
Mukilteo, WA 98275 

�GiiiJiliW:.gov
FEB 0 7 2020 

CIT 

ADDRESS/LOCATION: Lf-/0'7 1(/Jlff) Sl,u_f-
DESCRIPTION OF WORK: &z uni -J?J Ps P 

PARCEL No: -=IJ-=--o_5CJ_ll lJ_O()__:__v-=-u=-5i_o_7 ___ _ 
furn ()5 

COMP PU\N DESIGNATION: f(l(KS i Dptr; 8Pt1t.l 
I I 

DATE OF PREAPPLICATION MEETING (if held): ____________ _ 

APPLICANT INFORMATION 

NAME: LMJda1'12tt±e,,r-
ADDREss: //q 10 C::1015 (1,fc:&j

PHONE: 1:J5-J&3-f IY/3 EMAIL:/ o ltu-@mula /-kot-va, lfZ>V
J 

CITY: Nu&t !fu STATE: /u/7 ZIP: qi;;zs

PROPERTY OWNER INFORMATION O Same as AbO\·e 

NAME: Yi i>{ f--lcw tl-u.J PHONE:4£�
✓2_&3-f't>M EMAJL: mu)<-d�LUd.. 9,2✓

ADDREss: l ttJ[> CL c1Tv: Uu)o II-cu sTATE)(,1 /r z1P: tJt'.:?75 
CONTACT INFORMATION 

NAME: _____________ PHONE: ________ EMAJL: _____________ _ 

ADDRESS: 

Project Type (check all that apply): 

□ Accessory Dwelling
Unit*

□ Binding Site Plan
� Comprehensive Plan

Amendment* 
□ Conditional Use*
□ Lot Line Adjustment*

SIGNATURE: 

□ Reasonable Use*
11( Rezone*
□ Shoreline:

□ Conditional Use*
□ Exemption
D Substantial Development*
□ Variance*

CITY: 

D Special Use* 
D Subdivision*: 

D Preliminary Short 
□ Preliminary Long
D Final Short
D Final Long
D Amendment

STATE: ZIP: 

*Supplemental Application Required

D Variance* 
□ Wireless Communication

Facility
D Other*: _______ _ 

□ SEPA

I/We ce1tify that the informati · y the laws of the St
·ovided in this application, including all submittals and attachments, is true and correct under penalty of
ashington.

Lit� 
t / Authorized Agent Signature Date 

Owner Signature (required) Date 

O:\Fonns and Brochures\Land Use Pcnnit Application\rcv 05012019 

Exhibit 1

Page 7 of 36



Page 8 of 36



Page 9 of 36



Page 10 of 36



Page 11 of 36



Exhibit 2 

Page 12 of 36



Page 13 of 36



Page 14 of 36



Page 15 of 36



Page 16 of 36



Page 17 of 36



Page 18 of 36



Page 19 of 36



Page 20 of 36



Page 21 of 36



Page 22 of 36



CITY OF 

MUKILTEO 

lliJ 

2020 Docket 
w 

City of Mukilteo - Former Cannon Property 

I 

Former Cannon Property 
Current Zone: RD 7.5 Single Family Residential 
Proposed Zone: Open Space 

Current Land Use: Single Family - High Density 
Proposed Land Use: Parks and Open Space 

,.,.,. c· 
L

' . 
;.,.,,. 1ty 1m1ts

� Parcel Boundary 

Zoning District 

RD 7.5 Single-Family Residential 

1111 DB Downtown Business 

WMU Waterfront Mixed Use 

1111 OS Open Space 

N 

s 

EXHIBIT 3

Page 23 of 36



MUKILTEO PARKS AND ARTS COMMISSION AGENDA REPORT 

SUBJECT TITLE:  Mukilteo Waterfront 
Update 

Meeting Date: September 3, 2020 

Staff Lead:  David Osaki, Community 
Development Director 

Exhibits: 
1. Draft Waterfront Project Timeline/Status

Map 
2. PowerPoint

Department Director:  David Osaki, 
Community Development Director 

BACKGROUND 
The Parks and Arts Commission (“PAC”) expressed interest in obtaining an update on 
waterfront development activities.    

As background, the vision for development of the Mukilteo Waterfront is articulated and 
expressed in the Mukilteo Downtown Waterfront Master Plan.  The adopted Downtown 
Waterfront Master Plan may be found on line at this link: 
 https://mukilteowa.gov/departments/planning-development/planning-long-
range/downtown-waterfront-master-plan/ 

The City adopted the Downtown Waterfront Master Plan in 2016 following a substantial public 
outreach process.  The Downtown Waterfront Master Plan recognizes the unique character of 
the busy Mukilteo waterfront including, but not limited to, Lighthouse Park, Losvar 
Condominiums, the Washington State ferry terminal, restaurants, hotel, National Oceanic and 
Atmospheric Administration (NOAA) facilities, the recently transferred Tank Farm site, and 
Edgewater Beach. 

Equally important, the Downtown Waterfront Master Plan recognizes the waterfront 
redevelopment being planned and/or taking place with the Washington State Ferries terminal 
relocation project, a proposed new NOAA research lab facility, as well as the waterfront 
promenade and the Japanese Gulch daylighting projects.    

Overall, the adopted 2016 Downtown Waterfront Master Plan conceptually describes a 
revitalized waterfront which includes a mix of recreational opportunities and related business 
development, all while enhancing pedestrian mobility.   This includes an urban street front with 
local businesses, pedestrian promenade, bike lanes and lively pedestrian supportive waterfront 
uses.  

Page 24 of 36

https://mukilteowa.gov/departments/planning-development/planning-long-range/downtown-waterfront-master-plan/
https://mukilteowa.gov/departments/planning-development/planning-long-range/downtown-waterfront-master-plan/


Implementation of these Downtown Waterfront Master Plan elements allows residents and 
visitors to experience the waterfront.  The waterfront experience ranges from an urban 
environment to a natural shoreline, while connecting people both physically and thematically to 
the natural, cultural and urban qualities that compose the past, present and future of the 
Mukilteo waterfront. 

Certain properties are identified in the Downtown Waterfront Master Plan as available for 
future commercial development.  Although specific uses are not necessarily called out for 
individual properties, uses that might be expected include restaurants (where people can dine 
and enjoy the waterfront experience), microbreweries, museums, personal service shops, art 
galleries, and pedestrian oriented retail stores.  General office uses would support the 
Downtown Waterfront vision as well. 

Exhibit 1 shows certain existing and potential waterfront projects and generally identifies 
estimated timing for those projects, where known.  Staff will provide an update on these and 
other waterfront development activities at the September 3, 2020 Parks and Arts Commission 
meeting. 

RECOMMENDATION 
PAC to listen to staff presentation and ask questions, if any. 

Page 25 of 36



EXHIBIT 1 

PAC MEETING: Sept. 3, 2020 

Page 26 of 36



Mukilteo Parks and Arts Commission
September 3, 2020

Exhibit 2

Page 27 of 36



Preferred Alternative - West (Page 10)
Page 28 of 36



f

Preferred Alternative - East (Page 11) 
Page 29 of 36



Mukilteo Waterfront
Activity Summary 

Page 30 of 36



Page 31 of 36



Waterfront Promenade/Shoreline Enhancement 

Page 32 of 36



Page 33 of 36



Questions?

Page 34 of 36



MUKILTEO PARKS AND ARTS COMMISSION AGENDA REPORT 

SUBJECT TITLE:   
Byers Family Park Update 

FOR AGENDA OF:  
September 3, 2020 

Department Director: 
Jeff Price 

EXHIBITS: 
1. Park project photos

Contact Staff: 
Jeff Price, Director Recreation & Cultural 
Services 

Informational: 
RRJ Company continues their work on the Byers Family Park. Anticipated completion of the 
park is September. Photos are attached of current construction. The City Council formally 
accepted PAC’s motion at the August 3rd Council meeting to name the park Byers Family Park. 
Once complete, the park will feature a plaza, bicycle repair station, benches, and updated curb 
ramps adjacent to the new park. 

Recommendation: 
None needed.  

Page 35 of 36



Byers Family Park – Project Status photos

Page 36 of 36


	01PAC Agenda Final for Sept 2020
	CALL TO ORDER – 7:00 PM
	ROLL CALL
	AGENDA ORDER
	APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA
	QUARTERLY CITY COUNCIL LIAISON UPDATE
	NEW BUSINESS ITEMS:
	1. 2020 Comprehensive Plan Final Docket List – PAC Related Items
	2. Waterfront Update
	REPORTS AND COMMUNICATIONS
	ADJOURNMENT

	02 August 6, 2020 Draft Minutes
	03AB FYI 2020 Final Docket Items
	03aEXH 1 4407 76th ST. PlanZoning Docketing
	03bEXH 2 Japanese Gulch MP Excerpts
	03cEXH 3  City of Mukilteo (former Cannon Property)
	04 AB Waterfront Update
	04a EXH 1 Waterfront Map
	04b EXH 2 September 3 2020 PowerPoint Presentaiton
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	f
	Mukilteo Waterfront�Activity Summary  
	Slide Number 5
	Waterfront Promenade/Shoreline Enhancement 
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8

	05 PAC AB  Byers Family Park Update 9-3-20
	05a Byers Family Park pic status 9-3-20
	Slide Number 1




